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VITAE

MARGARET SCATTERGOOD

r

Margaret Scattergood was born in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania on
October 1, 1894,and came from a strong Quaker background. She attended
Bryn Mawr College and she received her Bachelor of Arts in 1917.

After her college graduation, Scattergood served in France with
the American Friends Service Committee, doing refugee aid work. She
then worked in New York City with the National Council for the Preven
tion of War.

In April 1926, Scattergood joined the staff of the American
Federation of Labor. She was instrumental in developing the first
national unemployment reports, and the cost of living and consumer
price indexes with the cooperation of the staffs of the Department of
Labor and Commerce.
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Ora l H is to ry In te rv iew

w i t h

MARGARET SCATTERGOOD

December 3, 1976
McLean, Virg in ia

By Alice Hoffman
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INTERVIEWER: Th is is A l ice Hoffman record ing for the Univers i ty o f Mich igan
project, "The Trade Union Woman: Vehicle of Social Change,"
interviewing Margaret Scattergood in her home on the 3rd of
December, 1976.

Margaret, could you just give me your full name and your date
and place of b i r th?

SCATTERGOOD: I 'm Margaret Scattergood. I was born in Phi ladelphia on Octo
ber 1, 1894.

INTERVIEWER: A l l r igh t . You jo ined the s ta f f o f the AF o f L when?

SCATTERGOOD: Apr i l , 1926.

INTERVIEWER: And what was your posit ion, Margaret?

SCATTERGOOD: I was a member of President Green's research staff under Florence
Calvert Thorne who was Director of Research.

INTERVIEWER: And you ret i red?

SCATTERGOOD: I resigned in January of 1953.

INTERVIEWER: We l l , I t h i nk i t ' s impo r tan t as a k i nd o f i n t r oduc t i on t o t h i s
interview to observe that you worked very closely with Miss
Thorne during that period of time and that she has given a
memoir to the Columbia University Oral History Research Office
and that one of the things that you would l ike to do would
be to comment on Miss Thome's role in the AF of L as a codicil,
i f you wi l l , on that in terv iew that she gave to Columbia.
So do you want to say something about your thoughts on a kind
of perspective on Miss Thorne?
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SCATTERGOOD: Well, I began to look at our work in the Federation in per
spective about a year and a half ago when I was developing
a very br ief b iography on Miss Thorne for a bookplate. This
task made me see the significance of her work there.

When Mr. Gompers came to the United States, he was very im
pressed with the kind of government he found here. The pro
tect ion of individual r ights and freedoms seemed to him to give
workers what they needed to get fair and just working condit ions
through co l lect ive bargain ing. So he was a lways in favor o f
workers bet ter ing themselves through bargain ing wi th their own
employers rather than through a social ist program, which depended
on a faraway federal bureaucracy to improve workers' condit ions.
Mr. Gompers felt that workers and employers knew the circum
stances of their own plant and could develop rules and regula
t ions cover ing work ing condi t ions which were su i tab le for that
plant. Therefore, he was always opposed to social ism, always
in favor of un ion organizat ion through a democrat ic local t rade
union where the membership elected their officers and where the
membership made plain to the officers the kinds of things that
they wanted to accompl ish in bet ter ing the i r cond i t ions.

Miss Thorne believed also wholeheartedly in the Gompers philo
sophy. Mr. Gompers res i s ted the e f fo r t s o f soc ia l i s t s t o ge t
the American Federat ion of Labor to sponsor social ism or social
is t ideas. He was always so v igorously opposed to th is that
the social is ts never had an opportuni ty to penetrate the American
labor movement.

As time went on and we went through the serious business de
pression of the 1930's and President Roosevelt , coming in in
1933, began to estab l ish codes for labor condi t ions in indust ry,
i t became pla in that labor needed col lege- t ra ined people to
help them get the information needed for their new responsi
b i l i t i es . Rooseve l t i ns i s ted tha t t hese codes be deve loped
by committees consisting of a representative of management, a
representat ive of the government , and a representat ive of labor
meeting together. Miss Thorne saw the need for developing
in fo rmat ion fo r the labor rep resen ta t i ves . So in the Federa
tion we began employing students who had recently graduated
from col leges and universi t ies to help search out and develop
the in fo rmat ion needed. Of course these s tudents fe l t tha t
their education had given them superior knowledge and were
eager to guide labor a long the l ines of the i r own th ink ing.

This is where Miss Thorne gave one of her most important services
because she made it plain to every student who became a labor
researcher that they were the servants of labor and that they
were there to provide information which the trade union leaders
wanted and needed but the labor leaders themselves were always
the ones to make policy. In her own work with labor, Miss Thorne
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SCATTERGOOD: always made it a point to give labor information but never to
tel l them what to do. She would use this method: she would
gather information and then she would say to a labor leader,
'Now, you might do this or you might do that or you might
d o . . . . ( a n o t h e r s u g g e s t i o n ) .

Labor leaders had complete confidence in Miss Thorne because
they knew that she had their cause so completely at heart,
that she was never self-seeking, that she was always completely
honest and they could t rust her. So that , w i th her gu idance,
the labor leaders were wi l l ing to accept these co l lege-
educated research d i rectors, and Miss Thome's influence
helped the research di rectors to adjust themselves so that
they cou ld g ive a serv ice to the labor leaders wi thout t ry ing
to in tervene in the making of po l icy.

Through Miss Thome's work as director of research and the
large group of labor research di rectors employed by inter
national unions and by the Federation, labor became very well
ve rsed in the indus t r ia l cond i t ions o f our t imes . They had
informat ion about the posi t ions of their own companies, about
the cond i t ion o f the i r indust ry, about the earn ings o f workers
in s imi la r k inds o f work , about cos ts o f l i v ing , and about
indus t r ia l cond i t ions genera l l y so tha t they somet imes in
col lect ive bargaining even knew more than their employers.

The resu l t o f th is a lso was that , in add i t ion to be ing very
wise and o f ten very tough and const ruc t ive in the i r co l lec t ive
barga in ing , w inn ing impor tan t ga ins fo r labor, they a lso took
g rea t i n te res t i n the i r commun i t i es and i n na t i ona l l eg i s la
t ion and were we l l i n fo rmed in these fie lds as we l l . Loca l l y
they par t ic ipated in loca l prob lems, in such th ings as im
p r o v i n g t h e i r l i b r a r i e s , t h e i r s c h o o l s , g e t t i n g a d e q u a t e l o c a l
housing, and so for th. Nat ional ly they made their v iews known
in Congress and s ta te -w ide in s ta te l eg i s la tu res . So tha t i n
many fields they had an important influence in developing the
i n s t i t u t i o n s o f o u r c o u n t r y.

Also when the proposal for social security came along, Miss
Thorne had research directors who concentrated on this problem
and helped to develop the socia l secur i ty proposals in to law.

The result of Mr. Gompers' pol icy and of i ts implementat ion by
Miss Thorne and the labor leaders with the help of the research
staff, was that communism never was able to get a foothold in
the American labor movement. In foreign countr ies, where the
unions were sponsor ing socia l ism and t ry ing to get a soc ia l is t
government into power, the Communists found it quite easy to
penetrate the unions and to substi tute communism for social ism
and in th is way get cont ro l in var ious count r ies , as for ins tance
in I ta ly and France. In England they had a very ser ious contro l
in the Mineworkers Union and, I be l ieve, in o thers . Here in
th is count ry Pres ident Meany 's great recept ion fo r So lzenh i ts in
is a good example of the feeling of American labor.
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INTERVIEWER: Somet imes a l i t t le in format ion about the in terv iewer makes
some sense . In th i s case , Margare t , i t ' s pe rhaps no t en t i re l y
unreasonable for future histor ians to know that one dimension
of our talking together is that these are two Quaker women
talking to each other, and consequently I know something of
what i t meant to be born into a Quaker family in PhiladelDhia
at the time that you were. And you went to Westtown School.
I s n ' t t h a t c o r r e n t ?

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, I did.

INTERVIEWER: So d id I . Bu t I wonder i f you cou ld j us t desc r ibe a l i t t l e
bit your family circumstances and how you felt as a young
girl at Westtown and about your l i fe and your ambitions and
what your fami ly was l ike.

SCATTERGOOD: My father died in 1907 when I was thirteen years old. I had
an older half sister who was twenty-one years older than I
and two half brothers, eighteen and sixteen years older than
I . The two brothers took Father 's p lace and were very in ter
es ted in br ing ing up the i r younger ha l f s is ter. They emphas ized
to me the fact that I should try in my l i fet ime to make the
w o r l d a l i t t l e b i t b e t t e r b e c a u s e I h a d l i v e d i n i t . I n m y
na ive te I took ho ld o f tha t idea deep ly and v igorous ly. Th is
was during my teen years before college and during college
so that I began th ink ing: what cou ld I do that might poss ib ly
help the world along even a wee bit? Of course, at that t ime
we were not thinking about foreign countr ies, and I began to
th ink about the Uni ted States. I had done set t lement work
during my college years but felt that a movement of low in
come people to help themselves would bring more progress.

INTERVIEWER: You went to Bryn Mawr College, right?

SCATTERGOOD: I went to Bryn Mawr College from 1913 and graduated in 1917
just after the United States had gone into World War I.

INTERVIEWER: What kind of an atmosphere was there at Bryn Mawr at that time?
Was there a lot of thought about. . . . Now, of course I know
that Jane Smith went to Bryn Mawr in the Class of . . .

SCATTERGOOD: Jane Smith graduated in 1910. She was warden of Rockefeller
Hall when we were freshmen, and some of my very best friends
were in Rockefe l le r Hal l .

rr

INTERVIEWER: You knew her then?

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, yes!

INTERVIEWER: Did she have any influence on you at that t ime?
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SCATTERGOOD: Not at that t ime because I did not know her intimately.

INTERVIEWER: Were you act ive in the Society of Fr iends at that t ime?

SCATTERGOOD: No.

INTERVIEWER: No. I bel ieve at Bryn Mawr there was a Christ ian . . .

SCATTERGOOD: There was a Christian Association, yes.

INTERVIEWER: Were you act ive in that?

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, very, very l i t t le I a t tended the meet ings, and I was
i n t e r e s t e d i n i t .

INTERVIEWER: What did you major in, Margaret?

SCATTERGOOD: Economics.

INTERVIEWER: Oh, you d id major in economics. Was there a par t icu lar ly
strong teacher of economics at Bryn Mawr at that time?

SCATTERGOOD: I don't think so because I did not have very much of incentive
from the teacher in the study of economics. I skipped minor
economics because i t d idn' t fit in with my program, and I
read up about it from Tawney so that maybe that had something
to do with my not getting quite as much out of the economics
course as I should have.

INTERVIEWER: How did you happen to choose economics?

SCATTERGOOD: I don't remember.

INTERVIEWER: (Laugh ing) We l l , i t was cer ta in ly a very power fu l cho ice in
terras of your future career!

SCATTERGOOD: Wel l , i t ' s qu i te l i ke ly tha t even a t the t ime in co l lege I
was beginning to feel that my work to help people could best
be given to the labor groups that were organizing to improve
their own condit ions. This gave more promise of permanent
betterment than for people to accept help from social workers
to get them out of the i r t roubles.

INTERVIEWER: Right, so you were already interested in the labor movement?

SCATTERGOOD: I'm not too sure when my interest began because Eleanor Dulles
was also a classmate, the sister of John Foster Dul les, and
we had contact after college because we both worked in France
during and after the war, and she had gone into a factory to
lea rn wha t fac to ry cond i t i ons were l i ke . I t a l ked ove r va r i ous
workers' problems with her, and she had quite an influence in
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SCATTERGOOD: showing me how I could learn and begin to develop myself for
work and also in interest ing me in helping the workers to help
themselves.

INTERVIEWER: Wel l , th is was cer ta in ly a ra ther unusual in terest fo r a young
gir l brought up in a middle-c lass Quaker fami ly. How did your
half brothers respond to your interest in the labor movement?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, I don't think that I was aware very much of their response.
They d idn ' t say much about i t . I had thought at t imes that
my father would probably turn over in his grave if he knew that
I was interested in t rade unions, but they didn' t do or say
much about it.

r

INTERVIEWER: Your father was a businessman?

SCATTERGOOD: My father was a small manufacturer who was president of a dye-
wood company located in Chester, which brought in dyewoods
from Jamaica and made them into dyes, largely black.

INTERVIEWER: Was your mother al ive through your gir lhood?

SCATTERGOOD: My mother died in 1946 so I was at that time fifty-two years
o l d .

INTERVIEWER: Did she had a very strong influence on you? Or how did she
respond to your career in terest?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, she was always very loving and always glad to support
me in whatever I wanted to do.

INTERVIEWER: Wel l , now, I ga ther, Margare t , tha t in th is per iod o f t ime—
1915, 1916—when you were at Bryn Mawr, there was quite a
lo t o f femin is t d iscuss ion a t Bryn Mawr; that is , there were
a lot of talks about the vote for women, and there was some
suff raget te ac t iv i ty a t Bryn Mawr. Were you a par t o f tha t?

SCATTERGOOD: No, I wasn ' t , bu t there was tha t ac t iv i ty. I t came in to p lays
that we developed, and of course we had dramas that we parti
cipated in, some of the plays which we wrote ourselves; and
th is came into i t . But I was never in terested in women's
problems as such. I was interested in the problems of people,
men and women.

INTERVIEWER: T h a t ' s i n t e r e s t i n g .
Mawr and went . . .

A l l r igh t . So you graduated f rom Bryn

rr
SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

I graduated in June 1917. As soon as I was old enough—age 23—
I went over to work with the American Friends' Service Committee
in France. This was in late October or November of 1917.

This was the food rel ief program? Is that what th is was?
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SCATTERGOOD: Well , at the t ime that I went over, the war was st i l l on,
and the Friends were helping the refugees who had come down
from the devastated regions to l ive unt i l the war was over
in safer p laces. They sent me firs t to Bar-Le-Duc, and there
we had a small unit who helped the refugees by developing work
projects of sewing for the women and helping them to a cheerful
atmosphere where they got together and embroidered various
l inens. Then these l inens were so ld in the Uni ted States,
and the women were paid for their work. We also had a small
s tore where we so ld , a t be low the re ta i l p r ice , ar t ic les which
they needed in their homes.

INTERVIEWER: Was.this a team of both American and Brit ish Quakers?

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, in my particular "equipe" as we called our teams, using
the French term, there were two British women who directed
the work, and I was the th i rd , to s tar t wi th . They were very
much o lder than I . La ter a younger Br i t i sh g i r l came in to
the group, and there were four of us working in Bar-Le-Duc
unt i l the end of the war.

r
INTERVIEWER: Were you a pacifist a t th is t ime?

SCATTERGOOD: No, I never espoused the pacifist cause because I fel t that
to stop a ruler l ike Kaiser Wilhelm, who wanted to dominate
by mi l i tary force large areas of the wor ld , was exceedingly
important , and I d id not espouse the pacifist cause.

INTERVIEWER: Did that cause you to have a number of heated discussions
with your fe l lows in France?

SCATTERGOOD: In France?

INTERVIEWER: Yes, your fel low Quakers I mean.

SCATTERGOOD: No, I never bothered about i t . I d idn ' t a rgue, and they d idn ' t
e i ther ! (Laughing) I jus t went ahead and d id my work !

INTERVIEWER: Well , I would imagine that this was kind of a good t ime in
s p i t e o f . . .

SCATTERGOOD: You mean a time that I enjoyed?

INTERVIEWED: Yes.

SCATTERGOOD. Well , I suppose I did. I enjoyed the work with the French
people and with the Americans and English who were allied with
i t .

(End o£ Tape I, Side I)
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INTERVIEWER: What precipi tated your return f rom France? The work the
Quakers were doing ran out? Or what?

SCATTERGOOD: I was there from 1917 to the fall of 1919, and by that time,
the war was over, the work was well established to help the
refugees re-establish themselves as was needed, and I was
anxious to get back home.

INTERVIEWER: So you came back. What opportunit ies presented themselves
to you at that t ime?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, for a couple of years I stayed home, and then I went
up to New York to undertake a small project, which Frederick
Libbey was arranging, to sel l ca lendars to teachers in schools,
t ry ing to g ive the i r pup i l s a b roader wor ld ou t look by se l l i ng
p ic tu res o f ch i ld ren in o ther lands . Then I began to th ink . .

INTERVIEWER: I guess we'd better say who Fred Libbey was.

SCATTERGOOD: Well, Fred Libbey was a rather prominent member of the Society
of Fr iends, who was direct ing an organizat ion which he cal led
the Nat ional Counci l for Prevent ion of War.

So then, while I was in New York, I began thinking ahead to
what I might possibly do as a college trained person in con
nect ion wi th labor unions. I in terv iewed Edward Corsey, who
was at that t ime an organizer for the Amalgamated Clothing
Worke rs , and asked h im qu i te p la in l y : I s t he re any th ing
that an in te l lectua l can do to be usefu l to labor? Ar id he
s a i d , " I t d e p e n d s o n t h e i n t e l l e c t u a l . " S o t h e n I w e n t t o
Robert Bruere, who was with the Survey Graphic magazine at
that t ime and to ld h im that I would l ike to be helpfu l to labor
in some way. He knew Florence Thorne in Washington. He said,
"I know a l i t t le woman working in the American Federation of
Labor. She's no bigger than a wisp of dust that you might
find under your bed, but she's doing three men's work; and
I th ink she would find he lp usefu l . " So then he ca l led her
up and made an appointment for me, and I went down and had
lunch with Miss Thorne, and she arranged for me to come to
the Federat ion. By that t ime, the t ime I came to the Federa
t i on , i t was Ap r i l , 1926 .

But I le f t out a b i t o f the s tory because before that per iod
I had wanted to learn something about what it was to work in
industry, so I took a job with the Eveready Battery Company
among their production workers and became a straw boss over
a small section of some eight girls who were assembling radio
batter ies. I was there about a year and decided then that

. I had lea rned what I needed to lea rn . A f r iend came a long
suggesting that we take a trip in her Model T Ford across the
count ry to Ca l i fo rn ia . So I qu i t and went w i th my f r iend
from Denver to the Pacific Coast in her Ford.
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INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

r
INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

r

Where was this plant?

In Long Is land City. I l ived in New York and went over there
by subway in the morning, and that was a terr ific experience,
of course. It was just at the t ime when everybody else was
rush ing to the i r job. We had to be there by e ight o 'c lock
in the morning.

D id you l i ke the job? Or d id you find i t bor ing?

No, I l iked the job, but I found myself a bit inadequate to
supervise a section of some eight girls, one of whom was deter
mined to cheat. I was not smart enough to catch her when she
was cheat ing. This t roubled me a great deal !

What were the job condit ions l ike for these women in this
ba t te r y p lan t?

The conditions were in general good. The room and air were
clean, and the work was not too driving. But there was one
g i r l who pu t the fin ished ba t te r ies in to car tons , and these
b a t t e r i e s w e r e q u i t e h e a v y t o l i f t . S o t h a t t h a t g i r l , i n
c a r t o n i n g t h e b a t t e r i e s , w e fi g u r e d , w o u l d l i f t a w e i g h t , i f
you added them al l together during the day, about equivalent
to a small automobile. And it seemed to me that this was
heav ier work than a g i r l ought to be do ing. I d idn ' t know
what to do about i t . I d id no t do any th ing about i t , bu t
it stayed in my mind.

How did these work ing-c lass g i r ls receive you? Did they . . .

Oh, wel l , I l iked them, and they l iked
to man. They didn't know that I had a
that I was out of a middle-c lass fami ly
the i r a t t i tude. We used to have lunch
one time a girl brought some food that s
l i ke very we l l , and she sa id , "Wel l , I
eat i t !" The whole experience gave me
means when every penny counts toward th
buy for a l iv ing. I remember going by
a hat marked five dollars and saying to
that much for a hat!"

me. We were just man
co l lege educat ion or

I was impressed with
toge the r. I r emember
he found that she d idn ' t
p a i d f o r i t . I ' d b e t t e r
a feeling of what money
e things you have to
a hat store and seeing

mysel f , " Imagine paying

So i t changed your perspect ive about. . . .

Wel l , i t gave me the feel of what i t was l ike to l ive on your
income when your income was so small.

R ight . Okay. So anyway, you had th is wonder fu l oppor tun i ty
to go with a fr iend driving from Denver to the West Coast. . . .
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SCATTERGOOD: A friend, yes. It was when I came back that I contacted Robert
Bruere.

INTERVIEWER: How did you know him?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, I think he was just one of the people that it was sug
ges ted tha t I go see . I had ta l ked abou t th i s i n te res t o f
working with labor unions, and people suggested I see him.

INTERVIEWER: I see. By the way, was there any union in th is bat tery p lant?

SCATTERGOOD: No, no. No, they were not unionized.

INTERVIEWER: All right. And he then suggested that you come down to Wash
ington and meet with Florence Thorne.

SCATTERGOOD: That 's r ight .

INTERVIEWER: What was your impression of her upon first meeting her? Or
did you have any impressions part icular ly?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, she was a person who immediately inspired confidence.
She was sympathetic, easy to talk to, obviously very wise and
clever and had a great deal of savoir fa ire.

INTERVIEWER: And she decided, I suppose, to hire you?

SCATTERGOOD: Wel l , she took me on first as a volunteer, and for the first
s ix months I worked as a vo lunteer. I t took her qu i te a b i t
of t ime to get me to where I was much use, but finally after
six months she decided I was worthy of being put on the payroll.

INTERVIEWER: (Laugh ing) Wel l , tha t doesn ' t seem l ike a very long apprent ice
s h i p , M a r g a r e t ! A l l r i g h t . S o t h i s w a s i n 1 9 2 6 , a f t e r B i l l
Green was already president of the AF of L.

SCATTERGOOD: That 's r ight .

INTERVIEWER: So you never had an opportunity to know Gompers.

SCATTERGOOD: President Gompers had died at the end of 1924, and so this
meant that for a year and a quarter Mr. Green had been depending
heavi ly on Miss Thorne to help him carry forward the pol ic ies
of Mr. Gompers.

INTERVIEWER: What did that mean in terms of depending on her to carry for
ward. I mean, was he consulting her as far as advice as to
what he should do? Or was he simply asking her to implement
var ious po l i c ies tha t had a l ready been in i t ia ted? Or what?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, she was supplying him with information that he needed.
Of course, she was the firs t research d i rec tor.
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INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

r

INTERVIEWER

SCATTERGOOD

INTERVIEWER

SCATTERGOOD

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

The firs t and on ly, I guess.

The first and only. She was also helping him to make con
tacts with important people whom she had come to know through
Mr. Gompers, and she was part icularly interested in making
contacts between labor and the industr ial engineers because
she fe l t tha t , i f t he indus t r ia l eng ineers unders tood more
abou t l abor and the i r ve ry leg i t ima te des i res fo r the r igh t
working condi t ions, that a great deal of progress could be
made. This turned out to be a very correct idea.

Who were some of these industrial engineers, Margaret?

Who?

Yes, who.

Well, Morris Llewellyn Cook was one, and Robert Wolf was another
that we knew real well.

How about George W. Taylor?

Well, he was the . . .

He wasn ' t an indust r ia l eng ineer exact ly.

No, but he was the one who tried to speed up the workers by
making special incentive plans, and we thought that he was
doing very destruct ive work.

Oh, did you?

Tha t i s , i f I have t he r i gh t Mr. Tay lo r i n m ind . I 'm su re
I do.

Well, this was the Taylor who was at the Wharton School in
Pennsylvania.

Tell me more about him.

He worked on developing collective bargaining and a system
of a rb i t ra t i on in the hos ie ry worke rs .

Oh, no, no, that 's not the same man at al l . . No I 'm sorry.

Y 'ou ' re ta lk ing about the sc ient ific Tay lor ism that was pro
minent then.

Th a t ' s r i g h t . Th a t ' s w h a t I 'm t a l k i n g a b o u t . .

r
e
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INTERVIEWER: Okay. That was Freder ick W. Tay lor. Wel l , I no t ice tha t in i927, the
AF of L publ ished i ts first survey of unemployment cover ing twenty- three
ci t ies. Since I know that you had something to do with that monthly
report or survey of unemployment, i t seems to me that i t 's no accident
that that came out not too long after you came to work at the AF of L.
Is my hunch right that you were involved in that survey of unemployment?

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, yes, I was helping wi th that . We started i t first by sending out
cards to our d i rect ly-affi l iated unions to ask them the number of employed
and the number of unemployed in their unions. Then we combined these cards
to make a crude index of unemployment. I t was helpful, but of course i t
had such small coverage that it was not what we really needed.

Then I got to know Frederick Dewhurst who was working with The Twentieth
Century Fund. He and I both thought we could develop figures on employ
ment for most of industry because at that time the Commerce and Labor
Departments had figures on employment in most of manufacturing industries
and some service industr ies. So we began put t ing these together to find
the total number of employed persons in the United States, and then the
only thing we needed was to get an estimate of the total labor force so
that we could subtract the employed f rom the total labor force. We
final ly got a figure on labor force through the work of the Census Bureau.
Eventually they made estimates of the number in the labor force during
the periods between censuses when they had no actual figures. So that,

f i n t h i s w a y , t h e g o v e r n m e n t ' s s e r i e s o f u n e m p l o y m e n t fi g u r e s w a s d e v e l o p e d .

INTERVIEWER: But as I understand it, when you first began to do this work, the govern
ment was not keeping statistics on unemployment.

SCATTERGOOD: Not at all, there was nothing on unemployment.

INTERVIEWER: So that , um, your figures were real ly the only figures they had unt i l
some t ime i n t he t h i r t i e s , r i gh t?

SCATTERGOOD: Yes. I don't remeraber when they finally developed their own series of
unemployment figures.

INTERVIEWER: Wel l this sounds very simple, the way you describe i t . Simply to go to
the Bureau of the Census and get the manpower figures and then subtract
the employed figures f rom tha t . Bu t i t mus t have been qu i te a job . A
pa ins tak i ng j ob .

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, it was. And Frederick Dewhurst was very helpful in that and Robert
Nathan, later, in the Commerce Department picked it up.

INTERVIEWER: So you real ly were breaking new ground in terms of labor stat ist ics.
Did you have any sense that that's what you were doing? Or did you
j u s t t h i n k . . .

SCATTERGOOD: Well , I thought that this is what 's needed. So go out and get i t .

INTERVIEWER: And you continued
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that survey then for twelve years, r ight? From 1927 to 1939?

The unemployment figures?

Hm-hm.

Oh, no. We very soon handed it over to the Commerce Depart
ment, and they did i t .

Oh, I see.

No, when we got really good figures on employment, then we
gave up the postal card reports from our local unions.

You got them from other sources?

No, we developed the figures by gett ing the employment figures
which the government had and subtracting the total employment
f rom the to ta l l abor fo rce .

Okay.

Th is was en t i re ly d i f fe ren t . You see , the pos ta l cards we
sen t ou t t o t he un ions we re on l y t o ou r d i r ec t l y -a f fi l i a ted
un ions , t hose d i rec t l y a f fi l i a ted to the Amer i can Federa t i on
o f Labor. I t d id no t inc lude the loca l un ions o f any o f the
in ternat iona l un ions . So i t was a very, very smal l sample ,
and i t was not worthwhi le continuing that at al l as soon as
we got more comprehensive figures. But we didn' t do this
work in the Federa t ion i tse l f . I t was very soon taken over
by the Commerce Department and developed there.

No, but you did publish a monthly survey for about twelve
years .

Wel l , I . . . . yes , I go t toge ther in fomat ion abou t bus iness con
d i t ions , and we ca l led i t a t fi rs t "The Month ly Survey o f
Business", and then one of our organizers said that, when
a u n i o n o f fi c i a l l o o k e d a t t h a t t i t l e , h e w o u l d p u t i t i n
the scrap basket immediately. So we changed the t i t le to
"Labor's Monthly Survey", and we covered industr ial problems
and a lso labor cond i t ions . Bu t i t never took ho ld w i th the
labor people very much.

Why not?

I think i t was too academic for them probably.

Wel l , one th ing tha t I . . .
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SCATTERGOOD: I think I should say further about why the survey didn't take
on was that each union had its own problems in its own indus
try, and they were not so interested in the more general pic
ture that we got out in the survey for the country as a whole.

INTERVIEWER: But, now they've learned to be . . .

SCATTERGOOD: I don't know what the situation is now, but the survey was
discontinued in the summer of 1952.

r

INTERVIEWER: Okay. Wel l , one of the things I would be interested in your
comments about is that I know that for quite some period of
t ime—well , unt i l 1933, I guess—President Green opposed un
employment insurance. The AF of L Execut ive Counci l , in their
minutes that I 've looked at , 1929, 1930, 1931, they feared
unemployment insurance as a dole. You were there at that
t ime collecting these figures on unemployment, and I wonder
if you had any feeling about how these att i tudes changed—
how Miss Thome's att i tudes changed, how Mr. Green's att i tudes
changed, the AF of L Executive Council members. Because ob
viously by the t ime you get to 1933, the Counci l is endorsing
unemployment compensation.

SCATTERGOOD: Well, I remember very keenly the fact that they felt that
workers should earn what they were paid. The things they
wanted to see was jobs for workers and they worked first for
a nationwide employment service to place workers in jobs, but
the problem simply got too colossal. (INTERRUPTION)

INTERVIEWER: I had just been asking you about the change in AFL policy
with respect to unemployment insurance, and you were saying
tha t th ings became so ca tas t roph ic tha t i t rea l l y necess i ta ted
some kind of change.

SCATTERGOOD: It was clear that they were not able to create enough jobs.

INTERVIEWER: Right . What was Miss Thome's at t i tude wi th respect to th is
change?

SCATTERGOOD: I do not remember her attitude as being any different from
the a t t i tude o f the labor leaders .

r

INTERVIEWER: In other words, while she preferred jobs, she was opposed
to the dole, but she recognized that there was a cr is is.

SCATTERGOOD: That it had to be, yes.

INTERVIEWER: I no t i ced an in te res t ing l i t t l e s ide l ine in what I was read ing
at Columbia, and that was apparently Miss Thome's contact
wi th El izabeth Brandeis was important in terms of the legis
l a t i on t ha t was fina l l y d rawn up . The re was j us t a l i t t l e
note in some research that I d id that indicated that Miss
Thorne was the go-between between Justice Brandeis and Presi
dent Green in that she apparently knew Justice Brandeis'
daughter. Did you know El izabeth Brandeis?
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C SCATTERGOOD: Well, she was in college with me. I mean she was in Bryn
Mawr 1915, and I was 1917. So we were two years in college
together, but I had no contact wi th her in th is connect ion
at al l ; and i f Mr. Green wanted to see Just ice Brandeis or i f
Miss Thorne thought that i t would be helpful for him to see
him, she would have made contact directly between Mr. Green
and Just ice Brandeis. So I don't see why El izabeth would
have come in.

r

INTERVIEWER: Wel l , th is was in Ph i l Taf t 's book.* Apparent ly there was
a letter that went between Elizabeth Brandeis and Miss Thorne . .

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, well, maybe Elizabeth Brandeis was trying to arrange some
thing. I don' t know. But anyway, I don' t know anyth ing about
t h a t c o n t a c t a t a l l . M y r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h E l i z a b e t h B r a n d e i s
d id no t en te r i n to i t a t a l l . I mean I d idn ' t see he r a t any
t ime when I was wi th the Federat ion. I was not a part icular
f r i e n d o f h e r s a t c o l l e g e , e i t h e r.

INTERVIEWER: Well, when they began to draw this legislat ion up state by
state, were you involved in staying on top of that?

SCATTERGOOD: No, I was not involved in that at all but Miss Thorne did have
research d i rectors who were he lpfu l . I don ' t remember in
that case par t icu lar ly, but I do remember that Lane Kirk land
he lped in soc ia l secur i ty prob lems. I be l ieve Ber t Se idman
did, too. He helped wi th housing, I know.

INTERVIEWER: What was your job, then, during the thirt ies at the AF of L?

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, my job was principal ly finding information that unions
n e e d e d f o r t h e i r c o l l e c t i v e b a r g a i n i n g . O f c o u r s e , i n t h a t
connection we research workers together used to determine
the figures and stat ist ics we needed from the government,
and also we used to go together to meetings with the govern
ment s ta t is t i ca l o fficers to exp la in our p rob lems and what
we needed so that some very good collections of figures were
developed. And we had very capable help too, of course, in
the Labor Department. They worked very hard in gett ing a cost-
of- l iv ing or consumer-pr ice index, which would be above reproach.

INTERVIEWER: Who were the people in the Department of Labor that you were
work ing wi th?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, principally Ewan Clague, who was at the time head of the
Bureau of Labor Statistics, and Aryness Wickens, who was working
with him. Those are the ones that I remember best.

r *The AF of L in the Time of Gompers. Harper Publishing Co., ]957.
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r INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

And you met with them on a pretty regular basis?

Oh, yes.

(End of Tape I, Side 2)
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INTERVIEWER: Okay, well, we were talking about your meeting with Ewan
Clague and Aryness Wickens. What was the nature of your
discussions? I 'd just l ike to know how you went about your
work because the whole business of col lect ing these stat is
t ics seems absolutely appall ing to me, Margaret, such a
tremendous job. I can't imagine, when you were just begin
ning, how you attacked i t .

SCATTERGOOD: Well, one thing that we got the Labor Department to do for
us was to collect union wage scales in a great many differ
en t i ndus t r i es . These we re espec ia l l y he lp fu l because , i f
you went into negotiat ions with an employer, you told him
what the un ions were get t ing in th is and th is job. And of
course the development of the consumer price index was very
important . The Labor Department expla ined to us that th is
was no t a cos t -o f - l i v ing index ; i t was a ser ies o f p r ices
weighted according to what an average family would probably
buy and use. There was qui te a lot of deta i l about that .
It had to be very, very carefully done, and was. We had
great confidence in both Ewan Clague and Aryness Wickens
in the development of those figures.

I don't at the moment think of anything else for an example.
We went over to the U.S. Census Department and talked with
them about the unemployment figures. I used to go personal ly
to a man named Mr. Paradiso in the Commerce Department, who
was on Robert Nathan's staff , to get information about pro
duction and the Gross National Product. That index was
developed in those years, too, and i t was real ly to me quite
t h r i l l i n g t o t h i n k t h a t t h e t o t a l p r o d u c t i o n a n d s e r v i c e
value for the whole United States could be assembled into
one figure fo r Gross Na t iona l P roduc t . I t was qu i te exc i t i ng
when that first happened in, I should say, the mid-1930's.

INTERVIEWER: How did you keep up with al l of the stat ist ical preparat ion
that I doubt that you had had at Bryn Mawr?

SCATTERGOOD: I had one course of one lesson a week in statistics for a
year while I was in Bryn Mawr. I knew what an index number
was, and that 's pre t ty wel l a l l I d id know, I guess.
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INTERVIEWER: So did you just teach yourself?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, it was very simple. I mean anybody that knew arith
metic and knew index numbers and how they were developed,
that was really all you needed to know. You learned how
to use the government index numbers.

INTERVIEWER: Well , i t sounds simple to you, but i t doesn't sound simple
to me! (Laughing)

SCATTERGOOD: Well, there were a great many different branches, of course,
and of course you didn't use index numbers for employment
or fo r wages. You go t the rea l figures there , bu t the index
was because you were combining a great many different kinds
of things. You were combining the sweeper on a restaurant
floor wi th the product ion worker in a shoe factory and that
k i n d o f t h i n g .

We l l , o f c o u r s e r i g h t i n t h e m i d s t o f a l l o f t h i s a c t i v i t y
comes the split between the AF of L and CIO in 1935 and '36.
D id tha t a f fec t you a t a l l ?

Wel l , of course, we research directors worked together re
gardless of whether we were AF of L or CIO. We all worked
t o g e t h e r. S o t h i s d i d n o t s p l i t u s .

T h a t ' s i n t e r e s t i n g . Yo u c o n t i n u e d . . .

Oh, yes. We had meetings out here, you see (at our residence
in McLean, Vi rg in ia) . Th is is a wonder fu l room for meet ings,
and we would have as many as twenty or thirty of us get
together out here and discuss our problems, what we needed
from the government and so on, and always AF of L and CIO
meet ing toge ther, represen ta t i ves .

INTERVIEWER: At no point d id you exper ience a spl i t , then, in th is group?

SCATTERGOOD: I don't remember any.

INTERVIEWER: What about. . . .now, here I real ize that we're ta lk ing about
hearsay except that , s ince the pr inc ipals are no longer
around, we can't real ly ask them; but obviously Miss Thorne
had known John L. Lewis for a long time. In 1921, when he
first ran against Samuel Gompers, and now in 1935 he emerges
as the leader for the Commit tee for Indust r ia l Organizat ion.
Do you remember her feel ings about industr ia l organizat ion
versus c ra f t o rgan iza t ion?

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

r
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SCATTERGOOD: Oh, well, she knew, and we all knew of course, that in
dustr ial organizat ion had to come. We saw the obstacles
in the AF of L because of their craft unions. The Federa
t ions star ted organiz ing the workers in mass product ion
i n d u s t r i e s , i n s t e e l , r u b b e r, a u t o s , e t c . . i n 1 9 3 4 , p l a c i n g
them in un ions d i rec t l y a ffi l i a ted w i th the AF o f L . Then
John L. Lewis took over in 1935. He was in an industr ial
union himself, the Mine Workers.

INTERVIEWER: Miss Thorne didn't have negative feelings towards him be
cause he had run against Samuel Gompers?

SCATTERGOOD: No, she always admired John L. Lewis very much.

INTERVIEWER: Well, you were saying that, when Mr. Green first became
president of the AF of L and you joined the staff very
s h o r t l y t h e r e a f t e r . . .

r
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SCATTERGOOD: A year and a quarter.

I N T E R V I E W E R : T h a t ' s r i g h t ( c o n t i n u i n g ) t h a t h e w a s — w e l l , I t h i n k
it might be quite fair to say—quite dependent on Miss Thorne
for her knowledge of what had occurred in the office before
and so forth. Did that change? Did he become less depend
ent upon her? Or did he continue to rely on her to about
the same degree as he had when he first came there?

SCATTERGOOD: I don't l ike that word "dependent". Of course, Mr. Green
had to depend on Miss Thorne at first for information about
the Federation and the Gompers policies. But he was an
experienced labor leader, and experienced too as a legisla
tor in Ohio. He had his own ideas, which were wise and
forward looking. Miss Thorne helped him to carry them out.
Of course, she contr ibuted her ideas, too. They worked
we l l t oge the r. He was i n te res ted i n exp la i n i ng l abo r ' s
viewpoint to people outside the labor movement and also
in gett ing information from them. She helped him to make
contacts wi th un ivers i ty pro fessors , bus iness men, indus
t r ia l eng ineers , and var ious o thers .

INTERVIEWER: Now, these people that you mentioned.. . . l ike, for instance,
Fel ix Frankfur ter? People of that sor t you mean?

SCATTERGOOD: I don't know that I could ci te very many instances. I f
Mr. Green had a particular problem and some college pro
fessor knew a lot about i t , then she'd get that col lege
pro fessor and get h im to ta lk to Mr. Green about i t . I f
Felix Frankfurter wanted to see Mr. Green, chances were
he might cal l up and make his appointment. Often there
were people in high places who came through and wanted to
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SCATTERGOOD: know something about labor, and Mr. Green would frequently
refer those people to Miss Thorne. He had other th ings to
do, and Miss Thorne was very well versed in the background
and development of labor and their pol ic ies and their pro
b l e m s . I s t h a t a b o u t i t ?

INTERVIEWER: I th ink so. She ta lks in her memoir about the fact that
she really wrote the autobiography of Samuel Gompers, that
he checked it very carefully and made changes in it but
that she had for many years, she states, copied h is sty le
so that she could write as he wrote. She must have spent
a considerable amount of t ime researching that.

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, she did.

INTERVIEWER: Do you feel that this was important in her understanding
of Gompers' philosophy?

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, I would think it must have been, yes, because she dug
up enormous amounts of information and she checked every
thing with him and wrote the book on the basis of what his
own ideas were.

r
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INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

Were his ideas her ideas?
s t a n t i a l l y ?

Or did she differ from him sub-

Bas i ca l l y, I don ' t t h i nk t he re was any d i f f e rence i n t he i r
philosophy of what would help labor and what seemed the
construct ive way forward.

Wel l , for instance, one quest ion that occurred to me in
reading her memoir: she states in her memoir—and I think
th i s i s o n e o f t h e p l a ce s w h e re i t n e e d s a l i t t l e c l a r i fi
cat ion—that she was not ent i re ly approv ing of h is swi tch
from being a pacifist to advocat ing entrance into Wor ld
War I . Then she states that at that t ime she lef t the AF of
and went to work for the Department of Labor, I believe,
f o r a w h i l e .

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, she was head of the Working Conditions Department in
the Department of Labor.

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

Wel l , am I r ight or wrong, but I detect there a smal l h int
in her memoir that she may not have been entirely approving
of that sudden switch in Mr. Gompers' pol icy.

Well, I knew that she got somewhat fed up with the work
in the American Federation of Labor, and that was why she
switched. But just what i t was that made her fed up with
i t , I d o n ' t k n o w. I n e v e r t r i e d t o b o i l i t d o w n a s c l o s e l y
as you have! (Laughter)
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INTERVIEWER: Well, what was her attitude as far as World War I was con
cerned?

SCATTERGOOD: What do you mean? Did she not want to see the United States
go in?

INTERVIEWER: Yes.

SCATTERGOOD: She never gave me any hint of what she herself felt. She
only talked in terms of what Mr. Gompers felt, and I guess
she brought that out in her book about Mr. Gompers probably.

INTERVIEWER: Yes, she did. I mean, in other words, her memoir is di f
ferent . . . . ! mean, i f you read Gompers ' autob iography . . .

SCATTERGOOD: No, no, I don't mean that. I mean Miss Thome's book about
Gompers. You know that, don't you?

INTERVIEWER: Yes, I do know the book.

SCATTERGOOD: She called it Samuel Gompers, American Statesman.

INTERVIEWER: Yes, I do remember that book. And I remember that there's
a rather c lear, consistent exposi t ion of why he changed
f r o m a d v o c a t i n g n e u t r a l i t y. B u t t h e n t h e r e ' s j u s t t h i s
l i t t l e h in t in her memoi r tha t she may have fe l t tha t i t
was a l i t t le oppor tun is t ic on h is par t that he changed h is
a t t i t u d e s o q u i c k l y.

SCATTERGOOD: Well, I don't think she ever sat in judgment of what Mr.
Gompers did. She was interested perhaps in why he did it
and got the facts of the surrounding c i rcumstances, but I
never fe l t tha t she sa t in judgment o f h im a t a l l . So I
don't know whether his change could have had anything at
al l to do with her leaving the Federat ion and going to the
Labor Department.

INTERVIEWER: But you say she was a l i t t le b i t fed up wi th . . . .we l l , I
don't know, there's a lot of reasons why a person can get
f e d u p w i t h a j o b . J u s t t i r e d o f i t , f o r o n e t h i n g .

SCATTERGOOD: And the U.S. Labor Department was a different type of job.
There she was a professional col lector of in format ion, and
in the labor movement in the AF of L she had a great many
other kinds of jobs that were helping Mr. Gompers one way
or another.

(INTERRUPTION)

r
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INTERVIEWER: [How long did she have her] job in the Department of Labor?

SCATTERGOOD: Only one year.

INTERVIEWER: Only one year?

SCATTERGOOD: Hm-hm.

INTERVIEWER: And then she came back.

SCATTERGOOD: Yes.

INTERVIEWER: Were you at al l involved in The Federat ionist , in the job
o f ed i t ing The Federa t ion is t?

SCATTERGOOD: No, that was Miss Thome's job.

(INTERRUPTION)

INTERVIEWER: I had asked you the question as to how Miss Thorne came
back to work at the Federation.

SCATTERGOOD: Well, to be perfectly honest, Miss Thorne did not want to
come back to work at the Federat ion. She refused at first ,
I be l ieve, to do so. Mr. Gompers in terested her in re turn
ing to the Federat ion on the bas is o f her respons ib i l i t y
fo r h is au tob iography.

INTERVIEWER: How did you both, you and Florence Thorne, feel about the
women's movement and suffrage and equal pay for equal work
and these kinds of issues?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, Miss Thorne particularly was very strong for equal
pay for equal work. She was a very good fr iend of Alice
Paul of the National Women's Party, and helped her to meet
labor leaders .

INTERVIEWER: Well, I notice in her own memoir she talks about the fact
that she favored the Equal Rights Amendment that was being
considered in the for t ies, even though there were labor
people who opposed this.

SCATTERGOOD: And she certainly favored women's suffrage.

INTERVIEWER: Yes, r ight . In other words, she was not afraid of the Equal
Rights Amendment.

SCATTERGOOD: No, I don't think so. Well , I don't remember exactly her
a t t i t ude on t ha t one pa r t i cu l a r t h i ng , bu t she f e l t s t r ong l y
that a woman should have rights and that she should not be
p laced in a pos i t ion in fer io r to men.
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r INTERVIEWER: That leads me to ask you another question, and this is a
ques t i on tha t I ce r ta in l y have had to f ace . I f I ' ve had
to face i t , I 'm sure you had to face i t , going to work at
the Federation a whole generation before me. That was the
attitude of the men in the labor movement towards the women.
How did you feel . . . . I mean, d id they just to lerate you?
Did you feel that they respected you for your knowledge?
Or were their feelings, you know, "What's this women doing
here?"
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SCATTERGOOD: Of all the cases I know where a woman in the research field
was prov id ing in format ion for labor leaders , they respected
her just the same as if it had been a man, it seemed to me.
At least Mar jor ie Egloff—she was then Mar jor ie Clark—
was a research d i rector for the bui ld ing t rades unions, and
the way her mind tackled their problems, the information
that she brought for them was greatly appreciated and accepted.
I never had any problems dealing with them that would have
made me feel they treated me as inferior because I was a
woman. I remember Santiago Iglesius saying of Miss Thorne
that he regarded her as a very unique woman because he could
talk with her just as he would talk with a man and ask her
informat ion about a l l the th ings he was interested in and
discuss them as he would with a man, and he had never met
any other woman that he could do that with. He was, of
course, as you know, a Puerto Rican, and I guess the women
that he had known had been in the position of wives, and
the re la t ionsh ip had been very d i f fe ren t .

INTERVIEWER: Well, what about the pay for the people in the research
department? Do you think that the women got paid commen
sura te w i th the . . .

SCATTERGOOD: I frankly do not know at all.

INTERVIEWER: I know, for instance, I have fr iends in the Amalgamated
Clothing Workers who were dedicated trade unionists, no
doubt about i t ; but when you ask them this question, they
w i l l s a y, w e l l , i t ' s t r u e : w o m e n o r g a n i z e r s d i d n o t g e t
paid what men organizers got paid, or they didn't get cer
tain kinds of advantages in terms of their expense accounts
and th ings l ike th is that the men got . And I wonder i f
that was true in the old AF of L bui lding as wel l .

•

SCATTERGOOD: Well, I frankly simply do not know because I never asked
any of them.

INTERVIEWER: I'm wondering if you have comments to make about Mr. Green's
p res i dency. The re i s a g rea t dea l i n t he l abo r l i t e ra tu re
about Mr. Green having been a bumbling incompetent, Mr. Green
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I N T E RV I E W E R : a s h a v i n g b e e n F o r i n s t a n c e , I t h i n k t h a t S c h l e s i n g e r,
in his study of the history of the New Deal, makes the state
ment that Bi l l Green brought the Harding vir tues to the
AF o f L . Tha t ' s h is s ta tement , unquote . And there i s a
l o t o f ma te r i a l , pa r t i cu l a r l y a f t e r t he b reak w i t h t he C IO ,
writ ten to make Bi l l Green out to be a kind of a kindly
b u t i n e f f e c t u a l s o r t o f R o t a r i a n t y p e . N o w, t h a t ' s w h a t ' s
i n t he h i s to r y books . I wonde r you saw h im on a da i l y
basis in the old days . . .

SCATTERGOOD: Such statements, I feel, are very unfair to Mr. Green and
completely ignore the very important contr ibut ion he made
to the labor movement. He broadened labor 's influence in
nat iona l l i fe , on soc ia l and economic prob lems. Whi le Mr.
Gompers opposed social securi ty legislat ion because he feared
it would put unions at the mercy of government control, Mr.
Green had no such fear because he felt labor could have a
vo ice in the fo rmat ion o f such leg is la t i on and in d i rec t ing
i ts admin is t ra t ion. He served on the commit tee which draf ted
the bi l l which became the Social Secur i ty Act . And he set
up in the Federat ion a serv ice to unions in apply ing i ts
prov is ions to meet the i r needs. He sponsored other soc ia l
legislat ion such as a nationwide employment service and
unemployment compensa t ion . He fe l t tha t po l i t i ca l ac t ion
was an a id to col lect ive bargain ing, a l though secondary
to i t . He was ac t i ve in the s t rugg le to ou t law the in junc
tion evi l , and the yel low dog contract, and to do away with
company unions. The Norris LaGuardia Act in 1932, and the
Nat iona l Labor Re la t ions Ac t in 1935 , fina l l y es tab l i shed
l a b o r ' s r i g h t t o o r g a n i z e a n d b a r g a i n c o l l e c t i v e l y. M r.
Green ins isted that labor be represented in a l l agencies
and commissions whose decisions affected workers. He urged
local unions to have representat ives on school boards, univer
s i ty t rustee boards, in legis latures and government com
missions. He saw the labor movement as an organization to
promote the welfare of al l workers. He spoke to chambers
of commerce, universities, church groups and many others
to exp la in labor 's v iewpo in t . In 1929, when our o rgan izer
was expel led from El izabethton, Tennessee at gun point*,
he went there at once and rallied the workers in mass meet
ings, then made a trip through the South speaking to meetings
o f worke rs , t o l eg i s la tu res and o the rs . I n 1934 , he s ta r ted
organ iza t ion in mass p roduc t ion indus t r ies - rubber, s tee l ,
au tos , and o the rs . Unde r h i s l eade rsh ip , l abo r ' s i nfluence
spread widely throughout our social and economic l i fe wi th
g r e a t b e n e fi t .

* dur ing the 1929 tex t i le s t r ikes in E l izabeth ton, Tennessee.
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INTERVIEWER: Well, at one point I know that Mr. Green appointed or asked
Miss Thorne to k ind of be the condui t of a l l in format ion
t o h i m . T h a t i s , h e . . .

rr

SCATTERGOOD: Made her Director of [AFL] Research [Department].

INTERVIEWER: Well, made her Director of Research, but also suggested
to other people that they should approach her and then,
i f she thought i t was important, she would take i t to him.
I suspect that that must have created cer ta in k inds of pol i
t ical strains because there may have been people who felt
that they wanted to go direct ly to him.

SCATTERGOOD: I don ' t know. I d idn ' t come in to that par t o f i t .

INTERVIEWER: Well, the reason I asked that question is because I would
imagine that perhaps one of the people who felt that way
was George Meany, and that may have had something.... You
see what I was leading to! (Laughter)

SCATTERGOOD: I see. Wel l , there 's someth ing e lse again that I jus t can ' t
g ive you any in fo rmat ion on . I fee l sure , however, tha t
a labor man like George Meany would never have difficulty
in going d i rect ly to Mr. Green.

INTERVIEWER: Yeah. But at any rate, Miss Thorne did leave the Federa
tion and you also left the Federation because Mr. Meany
had kind of....well, what would be the word you would use . .

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, put her on the shelf, would you say?

INTERVIEWER: Put her on the shelf, told her she could have an office in
t h e l i b r a r v . . .

SCATTERGOOD: Well, made it very plain that she was to be in a very in
ferior posit ion and that she was no longer to be able to
act independent ly or have re la t ions wi th the other labor
leaders or with outside persons in the same capacity as
she had done under Mr. Green.

t

INTERVIEWER: Who were the principal people that she was in contact with
as far as the [AFL] Executive Council was concerned?

SCATTERGOOD: Well, she always thought very highly of Mr. [Mathew] Woll
and he thought very highly of her, and they worked together
on many of the important jobs that he had in his important
committees. And she worked closely with John Frey.

INTERVIEWER: From the Metal Trades Department.
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SCATTERGOOD: Yes.

INTERVIEWER: Right. Well , I know Mr. Woll was chairman of the Social
Security Committee, but he was chairman of a great many
committees, wasn't he?

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, he was. And at the time of the AFL conventions, he
was always chairman of the committee on resolutions, which
was the most important committee of all. He was very much
interested in educat ion; he took a prominent par t in that ,
too.

r
r

INTERVIEWER: Yes, I remember that he asked Miss Thorne, when they were
hav ing a l l t he d i f ficu l t i es a t B rookwood [Labor Co l lege ] ,
he asked Miss Thorne to go and visit Brookwood and make
a report to him. She talks about that in her memoir and
the fact that she wasn' t terr ib ly impressed with what was
going on at Brookwood.

SCATTERGOOD: That 's r ight. She was adversely impressed with i t .

INTERVIEWER: Was she interested in workers' education? And i f so, what
k ind . . . . in o ther words , i t wasn ' t the idea o f Brookwood
that she disapproved of.

SCATTERGOOD: Well, I think there was a good deal of communist influence
in Brookwood, and I think that that was the thing she ob
j e c t e d t o . A t l e a s t t h a t ' s w h a t I u n d e r s t o o d . I c o u l d
be wrong.

(End of Tape II, Side 3)

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

rr

She felt that workers should learn the way industry was
run, the way their accounts were kept, the things that they
could use in col lect ive bargaining with the employers, and
that sor t o f th ing . A good dea l o f the workers ' educat ion
that was going on was not very helpful.

She wasn't wild about teaching the workers to appreciate
p o e t r y . . . .

Oh , no ! ( Laugh te r )

Wel l , the reason that I say that , of course, is because I
remember being a l itt le bit amused that that was one of the
courses at the Bryn Mawr School for Women Workers.
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SCATTERGOOD: Wel l , i t ' s a l l r igh t i f you ' re g iv ing a worker the k ind
of educat ion tha t w i l l he lp her to have cu l tu ra l apprec ia
t ion in her l i fe . That 's one th ing, but we were concerned
wi th co l lec t ive barga in ing; we were concerned wi th the i r
gett ing ahead. We had not been able really to develop any
very effect ive workers ' educat ion movement at that t ime.

INTERVIEWER: When did Spencer Miller come? Did he come about the same
time as you did?

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, he was 1 think she already knew Spencer Mil ler at
the t ime that I came in, and he was in the field pretty
much during the whole t ime that I was there. But Miss
Thorne never felt too happy about the kinds of workers'
education that were provided through his Workers Education
Bureau.

INTERVIEWER: Now, he came in, did he, as Director of the Bureau of Edu
cat ion?

r

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, he developed the Workers' Education Bureau and was
himsel f the director of i t , and i t was accepted by the Fed
erat ion. And I guess i t did some good work, but . . .

INTERVIEWER: It just never amounted to very much, did it?

SCATTERGOOD: No, the thing that began really to give workers what they
needed were the col leges. Harvard, for instance, had a
good program where they took trade unionists into the Har
vard College courses and allowed them to take any course
that would help them in understanding their industry or
what. And there were a number of other colleges, and they
st i l l do i t today, as you know. Now they have simi lar courses
to that in their own AFL-CIO workers' col lege in the sub
urbs of Washington here.

r

INTERVIEWER: Right, the AFL-CIO Labor Studies Center.

SCATTERGOOD: Labor Studies Center, yes.

INTERVIEWER: Well, there have been some people who have written about
the AF of L who have seen Miss Thorne as a kind of an emi
nence gr ise.

SCATTERGOOD: A what?

INTERVIEWER: Do you know the book about the cardinal who was kind of
behind the throne? I gather f rom your statement that you
fee l tha t tha t ' s a ve ry e r roneous percep t ion , tha t tha t
was not what she was.
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SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

Wel l , she cer ta in ly was g iv ing labor the k ind of in forma
tion which would help them to move forward in often very
di fficul t c i rcumstances, and of course this had an enormous
influence because they depended on her for the information
they had. It was not her wish to be a power behind the
throne guiding them, but it was her wish to give them the
information so that they could make wise decisions.

Ye s , b u t t h a t ' s
i t ?

v e r y , v e r y d i f fi c u l t r o l e t o p l a y , i s n ' t

SCATTERGOOD: Very. Very indeed.

INTERVIEWER: Because the dist inct ions on a dai ly basis between pol icy
and i t s imp lemen ta t i on , they ' re no t j us t as c lea r cu t a l l
the time as you would l ike them to be.

r
r

SCATTERGOOD: No, and of course anyone supplying information is in a very
power fu l pos i t i on .

INTERVIEWER: Right, but I think the statement that you wanted to make
was tha t she cer ta in ly a t tempted to keep tha t d is t inc t ion . .

SCATTERGOOD: Well, she always left the decision up to them, but she showed
them var ious possible al ternat ives and probably something
of what the resu l ts o f th is dec is ion or tha t dec is ion might
be. And then it was up to them to choose what they wanted
to do.

INTERVIEWER: But as far as her instruct ions to the research staff were
concerned, she tr ied very hard to teach you what this dis
t i nc t i on was .

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, definitely, and to show us that we were servants to
labor and that we were to provide the labor leaders with
the information they needed but not tel l them what to do.

r

INTERVIEWER: Who was on the research staff in those early days? Now,
I know that you have mentioned Marjorie Clark. And Boris
Shiskin came on the staff . . .

SCATTERGOOD: Boris Shiskin was with the [American] Federation [of Labor]
for a very long t ime.

INTERVIEWER: Dave Kaplan?

SCATTERGOOD: Yes, and he later went to the Machinists Union.

INTERVIEWER: And didn't he then go to the Teamsters? Wasn't Dave Kaplan
with the Teamsters?
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INTERVIEWER

SCATTERGOOD

INTERVIEWER

SCATTERGOOD
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INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

Oh, yes, Dave was wi th the Teamsters . That 's r ight . Ruth
Rettinger helped us sometimes.

And where did she go from being on the staff?

I do not remember.

How large was th is research s taff a t i ts largest?

We l l , i t w a s n ' t v e r y l a r g e r e a l l y.

So in other words, all these people whose names we've men
tioned were not al l on the staff at any one t ime.

That 's about i t . Oh, wel l , there was of course Bert Seidman;
there was Pete Henry; there was Lane Kirkland.

Now, when did Lane Kirkland come onto the research staff?

Well, i t was sometime during the Roosevelt era.

I n t h e l a t e t h i r t i e s o r e a r l y f o r t i e s ?

I wou ld th ink la te th i r t ies . And there was another man—
his f i rs t name was Glenn—who was very helpfu l . I can ' t
at the moment remember his last name. He was on the research
s t a f f , t o o .

Margaret, I think I would have to say that, when you look
at this l ist of names, she certainly knew how to pick them.
Because look at the eminence that this research staff has
achieved, where now Lane Kirkland is most prominently men
tioned as possible President of the AFL-CIO . . .

Yes, but she wasn' t p ick ing people to take posi t ions in the
labor movement.

No, but she was picking competent people.

Picking competent people, yes. And the fact that he [Lane
Kirk land] has worked along and final ly come into that k ind
of posi t ion was something far d i f ferent f rom the research
work.

How did she pick these young people?

Well, she had some connections in Georgetown University who
recommended people, and she had a number of people with whom
she consulted about them to be sure that their records were
such tha t they wou ld p robab ly fi t i n . Tha t ' s a l l I remember
at the moment.
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INTERVIEWER: You know, it leads me to ask you a question that has always
been of some interest to me, and that is that there's always
a kind of a stress within the labor movement between wanting
to hire people who come from the ranks who show some promise
a n d a l i t t l e b i t o f a n t i - i n t e l l e c t u a l i s m o f s a y i n g , " W h y
should we hire some smart college kid?" Now, Florence Thorne
seems to have done a pretty good job of resolving that con
fl ic t and h i r ing good co l lege graduates in the research
s ta f f . D id she have any t roub le k ind o f ca r ry ing tha t ou t?

SCATTERGOOD: Wel l , i f she did, i t d idn' t come to my at tent ion. But she
was so much trusted by the labor leaders that they were
will ing to take on these college people of whom they were
suspicious because they knew what a person with a trained
mind could do in arguing you around. Of course, I am sure
she had a very great influence in persuading them to take
people with college training because she must have made it
clear to them that they were the only people who could sup
p ly the in format ion that they needed. Labor leaders s imply
did not have the background or the training, and I would
imagine that she would put i t some way l ike th is : "Wel l ,
you don't expect a greenhorn apprentice carpenter to have
the skil ls and knowledge that a journeyman would have. These
people are journeymen in thei r fie ld." She could have used
some kind of an explanat ion l ike that.

I don' t know i f she did, though.

INTERVIEWER: An explanation on their own terms.

SCATTERGOOD: On their own terms. I mean, she made it perfectly clear
to them, anyway, and of course that's the reason they were
so well accepted.

INTERVIEWER: We l l , i t ' s an i n te res t i ng s to ry. One o f t he ques t i ons tha t
young women are asking now, some of the young women in the
trade union movement, too, I th ink there 's a lot of anger,
a lmos t an t i -men fee l i ng . I n t a l k i ng w i t h you he re t h i s
a f te rnoon , I don ' t de tec t tha t , e i the r i n you o r i n wha t
y o u a r e r e fl e c t i n g o f M i s s T h o m e ' s a t t i t u d e s . B u t I ' m
wonder ing i f you yoursel f or in conversat ions wi th her as
one of her closest fr iends, how did you feel, the young
woman, about being a woman? I mean, did you say to your
self, "Oh, if I were a man, I could accomplish so much more"?

r
SCATTERGOOD: No, I just looked at the thing as jobs that were to be done

and did them the best I could. I t d idn ' t bother me whether
I was a man or a woman. I've always been interested in
seeing people get ahead. I f the problems were th ings that
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fr

SCATTERGOOD: men should handle, well, okay, let them handle them. I
was glad to see women come forward. I was glad to see them
hav ing the ab i l i t y to assume pos i t ions o f leadersh ip , too ,
but I was never one for the women's movement. And Miss
Thorne, I think, was not, either, though she was a good
fr iend of Al ice Paul of the Nat ional Women's Party.

INTERVIEWER: Well, I know in her memoir she states that, as far as the
Equal Rights Amendment was concerned, that [AFL President]
Green opposed i t but that she herself fel t that she approved
it. And she recognized that Green opposed it because he was
afraid that equal r ights would take away some of the special
p ro tec t ive leg is la t ion fo r women. But Miss Thorne wasn ' t
so afraid of that, and in that sense she was ahead of her
time because that's a posit ion which the AFL has only very
recen t l y come to . Tha t i s , he r pos i t i on has now fina l l y
been adopted by the AFL.

B u t l e t m e t r y t o g e t a t t h i s q u e s t i o n a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t
way. Sometimes when I speak to Bryn Mawr alumna of your
age and your genera t ion , they say, "Wel l , i t ' s rea l l y too
bad that Bryn Mawr had to have a man as the president."
They express a certain amount of feel ing that . . .

SCATTERGOOD: I've heard that from a lot of people.

INTERVIEWER: Yes. Wel l , how do you feel about that yoursel f?

SCATTERGOOD: Wel l , I 'm de l igh ted w i th h im! I l i ke Mr. Wofford ; I l i ke
his work in the Peace Corps, and I think he's a good presi
dent of Bryn Mawr. I don't care whether i t 's a man or a
woman as long as they are a good president.

Now, I should say that some of these people who are inter
ested in helping women get ahead are helping, yes, I think
even helping the women's movement. Miss Thorne helped them
a great deal because she knew those people in the labor
movement with whom they could talk and who would be likely
to consider their proposi t ion very reasonably, and she would
refer them to such labor leaders.

r
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INTERVIEWER: Right, I understand the role. In other words, she knew the
labor movement well enough that she could say to people in
the women's movement, "Well, if you go and see so-and-so,
that's not going to do you any good at al l ; but i f you go
and see this person, then you may be able to accomplish
someth ing. "

SCATTERGOOD: And he may make a proposition favoring your proposal in the
AFL Execut ive Counci l meet ing. Or something l ike that , see.
Or she could tel l the person who to go to to get their pro
posal made in the Executive Council meeting.
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INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

R igh t . In o ther words , he r ro le was k ind o f as a fac i l i
t a to r. Were the re o the r ou ts ide g roups—for i ns tance , the
consumers' movement or any other kind of group besides the
women's movement—for whom she played this kind of role?
Church groups? I mean, you know, there must have been all
kinds of groups seeking her help in this way.

Yes, I would say that she would give that kind of help to
any group that she felt would help to advance labor's cause
or the cause of people who were trying to improve their
c o n d i t i o n s .

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

Hm-hm. So she made these decisions on a kind of an indi
vidual basis in terms of how sincere she thought the thing
was.

Yes. And how worthwhi le she thought the proposit ion would
be f o r l abo r.

r
INTERVIEWER: Can you th ink o f a spec ific ins tance o f where she fo r

i ns tance , i n i n t e rna t i ona l r e l a t i ons? Now, I know t ha t
the labor movement was beginning to move out at this period
of t ime into taking an interest in what was going on in
Mexico and South America and Europe.

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, yes, I know that she was giving a lot of help to labor
i n mak ing t he r i gh t con tac t s i n te rna t i ona l l y. The re was
one of the English labor leaders that came over, and she
was he lp fu l in tha t connec t ion . I can ' t remember . . .

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

r

Was i t C i t r ine?

Ye s , i t w a s C i t r i n e . T h a t ' s r i g h t .

And she was always very interested in the Internat ional
Labor Organization and in the Federation of Free Trade Unions,
a s I r e c a l l . . .

Yes, she was interested in those. I don't know how much
she real ly d id. I remember that she used to consul t wi th
Erail Rimensberger who was the social attache of the Swiss
Embassy and a very, very fine, bright and wise man. She
invited him and Frank Fenton, the [AFL] Director of Organi
zation, and their wives out here, and they had conferences
and t a l ks t oge the r. Th i s k i nd o f t h i ng was ra the r t yp i ca l .

R i g h t . S h e k i n d o f p l a y e d a r o l e o f f a c i l i t a t o r b y i n v i t i n g
people here to her beautiful home and giving them an oppor
tunity to talk and get to know each other and discuss areas
of mutual concern.
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SCATTERGOOD: That 's r ight , yes. And probably just g iv ing them in t ro
duct ions to each other, not necessar i ly to br ing them to
gether in any special place, but to give a man an intro
duction and he could go and see the man in his office and
tha t so r t o f th ing . Oh, yes , she was very he lp fu l i n tha t
way.

INTERVIEWER: Wel l , i t ' s an impor tan t ro le .

SCATTERGOOD: Oh, very, intensely important, yes.

INTERVIEWER: And one that I think a woman is probably uniquely qualified
t o fi l l .

SCATTERGOOD:

INTERVIEWER:

I th ink M iss Thorne was p robab ly un ique ly qua l i fied to fi l l
t h a t , t o o .

W e l l , o k a y, I t h i n k i t ' s g e t t i n g a l i t t l e b i t l a t e . . .

r
(End of Interview)

r
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